
Commerce Department
Planning Division

Cabarrus County Government

Cabarrus County Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
September 21, 2006

7: 00 P.M.

County Commissioners Chamber

Cabarrus County Governmental Center

Agenda

1. Swearing in of Board Members

2. Roll Call

3. New Business:

A. Approval of Update to the Planning and Zoning Commission Rules and Procedures

B. ApprovaVCorrection of August 17, 2006 Minutes

C. Board of Adjustment Function:

1. Conditional Use Application C- 748

Cabarrus County Parks & Recreation Department
P.O. Box 707

Concord, NC 28026

Request: The applicant is seeking permission to construct a public use facility (Public Park)

D. Planning Board Function:

1. Zoning Atlas Amendment - Petition C-2006-07 ( R)

Mr. Louie Thomas Looper, Jr.

11180 NC Highway 73W

Huntersville, NC 28078

Request: ( 01) Office Institutional to (CR) Countryside Residential to build two single family
homes on the property.

4. Old Business:

A. Planning Board Function:

I. Preliminary Subdivision Plat Approval- Petition C2006-03( S) ( Tabled from August 17th meeting)
Cascades at Skybrook
Westfield Homes of the Carolina, LLC

11525 Carmel Commons Blvd. Suite 30 I

Charlotte, NC 28226

Director' s Report

Adjournment

Cabarrus County - Commerce Department
65 Church Street SE (28025) . P.O. Box 707 . Concord, North Carolina 28026-0707
Phone: 704.920.2141 Fax: 704.920.2144 web: www.cabarrusCQunty.us

NORTH CAIlOUIIA





























































Conclusions: The NC 73 Small Area Land Use Plan and map support the

development of the subject properties as residential.

However the NC 73 plan defines these properties as part of

a larger possible Neighborhood Center. Per the current

zoning designation ( C- 2) to the south and general
development trends in the area, it appears that a

neighborhood center is already starting to develop. A

medical office has been developed on PIN# 4672-40-3559

and additional plans have been submitted to the City of

Kannapolis for a drug store, a bank, a grocery store and

other general retail. These uses are all part of the approved
Renaissance Square Retail Center.

This rezoning could be considered an extension of an

existing CR zoning district. Under the Countywide Zoning
Atlas Amendment, adopted in June 2005, the general
consensus was that residential densities in this area of the

county should not be increased due to school overcrowding
and traffic congestion issues.

Recommendation: The proposed rezoning meets the overall residential

component of the NC 73 Small Area Land Use Plan.

However, it does not meet the intensity of residential

development specified in the plan for the parcels under

consideration (minimum of 3 to 5 units per acre). Since the

proposed rezoning request is not compatible with all

elements described in the NC 73 plan, the Board should

consider the information presented and decide whether or

not amending the subject property' s zoning classification to

CR is appropriate as it relates to the Planning and Zoning
Board' s vision for this area of Cabarrus County. In

addition, development trends in this area already support
the proposal set forth in the NC 73 plan for this area

including the subject properties) to develop as a

neighborhood center.



































Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006

10

Mr. Looper, owner of the property addressed the board. He stated that in May he was

trying to rezone the 19 acres from (01) Office Institutional to (CR) Countryside
Residential so that he and his son could each build a home on the property. He said in

July 2004, he signed a contract with Northeast Regional Hospital to let them purchase the

land his home is on a the present time. He said at that time, the 19 acres was zoned (CR)

Countryside Residential, on June 20, 2005, it was rezoned to (01) Office Institutional and

he was not aware of it until April 2006. He is not familiar with rezoning, so he asked the

planning staff if he had a chance to get the 19 acres rezoned back to (CR) Countryside
Residential but as you all know it was denied. Mr. Looper said at that meeting the Chair

advised that if he had a smaller portion surveyed off the 19 acres he would have a better

chance of getting it rezoned, and he has done that and attached it to the existing (CR)

Countryside Residential as advised by the Planning staff. He also had the Health

Department do a soil test and it has passed ( it is going to require a pump station but at

least they can have there septic system on there).

Mr. Fesperman asked if Mr. Looper is saying he went from 19 acres to what he came

forth with before.

Mr. Looper said to put the house where his son wants his, on the side of the pond. He

said they had to survey it up to a little over 12 acres for him to get his house in there. He

said on the remaining property he has discussed with the developers doing the shopping
center about putting a daycare on that section and that would work out perfect. He said

they want approximately 1.5 acres and that is going to be about 1.75.

The Chair said he ( the Chair) should not have been giving advice.

Mr. Looper said the Planning staff gave him the same advice, to survey off a section and

then attach it to the existing (CR) Countryside Residential behind it.

Mr. Haas asked Mr. Looper where his home is now that Northeast has an option on (the

property).

Mr. Looper showed on the map where is home is currently. He said at the time he signed
the contract, all the land he owned out there was ( CR) Countryside Residential and he

was not notified when it was rezoned.

The Chair said staff determined that Mr. Looper had been sent a letter.

Mr. Looper said he was sent a letter that said they intended for a lot of this area to be

commercial, which he agreed to let a lot of that happen, but nobody ever said that they
did not want him to build a house on any of it or that they were going to rezone it to ( 01)

Office Institutional.

e
Mr. Jerry Newton addressed the board stating that he came to Cabarrus County in 1990 as

their Planning Director. He said when the County was concerned about growth, the

County Manager at that time was saying we need help and are concerned about it. He



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006

11

said he told the County Manager not to be concerned about it, that it is something you
embrace, understand, and develop with it.

Mr. Newton said he is a certified land use planner, for 17 years, reviewed thousands of

plans, has designed town centers, subdivisions, developments and has been involved in

all facets of real estate. He and his wife currently own Century 21 Cornerstone here in

the community, with four offices and 65 agents. He loves the community and would like

to see things done right.

He said recently, Mr. Looper came to him to talk about what was going on with his

property. He said after looking at the situation, it was pretty clear that what he is trying
to do is actually implement it; the beginning facets of the Highway 73 plan.

Mr. Newton said Mr. Looper' s father bought the property where he resides and it has the

Commercial zoning as well as the Office Institutional, back about 40 years ago. He said

when Mr. Looper' s father died; about 33 years ago he and his siblings had a decision to

make. He said three of them wanted to sell for profit and Mr. Looper wanted to stay on

the family property. He said Mr. Looper took a second job by farming his property and

he worked off and paid and purchased all the land both in Cabarrus County as well as

Mecklenburg County. He said what Mr. Looper is simply asking to do is to stay on his

family property. He said a couple of things have happened to Mr. Looper that does not

make it very comfortable for him. He said when Mr. Looper looked and when the

hospital looked at the property as a location that they wanted to expand into, being on the

Cabarrus County side as close as they could get to county line with Mecklenburg. He said

they selected a location where they are currently. He said they also wanted the property
where his house is, Mr. Looper did not want to move. He said the hospital looked at how

the zoning was in place, Mr. Looper had other land and he could move to where he

ultimately wanted to be; which is around his pond. He said zoning permitted that at the

time and he signed a contract that would allow that to happen and materialize. Mr.

Newton said by the way the 1990 plan which is the current plan that is the adopted plan
as well as the Small Area Plan of 73; but the 1990 plan was one that was done when he

came as the County Planning Director, it was the beginning of Land Use Plans. He said

prior to that people would put in zoning prior to having a plan. He said that is the

existing document that is of record to be considered as well as the one that was recently
adopted being the 73 Plan.

e

Mr. Newton said Mr. Looper contracted with them which would then allow him to move

over by the pond. He said when Mr. Looper came to the County, he found out that the

property was zoned out of (CR) Countryside Residential into (01) Office Institutional.

He said for those of you who are familiar with the other ordinances in the county and the

city, when you look at (01) Office Institutional that zoning designation allows residential.

He said in fact if you look at your ordinance, permitted by standards you allow home

occupations in your ordinance but you do not allow the homes. He said the design of the

01) Office Institutional was one that was consistent that would allow homes. He said

Mr. Looper found out and was informed, sorry you cannot do that; which is why he tried

to come back and make a presentation earlier this year. He said the reason Mr. Looper



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006

12

has to extend it up to (CR) Countryside Residential is he does not want to be involved in

the spot zoning issue. He said what makes this important as a way to implement what the

County ofCabarrus, what the Town of Davidson, and the City of Kannapolis are wanting
is the plan that they have put in place, and that is the 73 study plan that was adopted
earlier this year. He said that document was prepared through a form of charrette and the

communities come up with a plan and the main part of that plan was to create a little

community of activity that they called Poplar.

Mr. Newton said Buddy Looper calls that main activity that they call Poplar his property.
Mr. Newton said Mr. Looper was not involved in that charrette, he was not involved in

that planning process, but the central theme of that entire document is built upon the

development of his property that he was not even involved in. Mr. Newton said as you
look at it and as you examine it, what he is actually putting together now begins to

implement this. He said the central point was creating Poplar that is Buddy Looper' s

property both in Mecklenburg County and Cabarrus County, North of Highway 73. He

said the widening of Shiloh Church or the extension of Poplar Tent was a donation that

Mr. Looper made and did not charge NCDOT anything because it was being discussed

for the need for this. Mr. Newton said Mr. Looper wants to stay on his property.

Mr. Newton said the document itself talks about having up to 15 million square feet of

employment opportunity on land where his house is sitting right now, it does not allow a

house where Mr. Looper' s house is now. He said the location Mr. Looper is asking to

move his house to is on both sides of the pond. He said you cannot implement that

document with his house sitting in the middle of an area that is calling for up to 15

million squares feet of employment development and does not call for single family. He

said within the document it talks about that area specifically in Chapter 6. He said Mr.

Looper is identified as being in a location that is in the neighborhood center. He said

further, Chapter 9, of the document identifies the pond and land on both sides as

neighborhood green, being an area that is not to be developed at the density called for on

the other locations. He said what they have done is simply gone back to the design of the

Perrow growth poll theory, where you have high density and you bring it down lower, it

is the design we developed 250 years ago and that we are pulling back into and now

calling it new urbanism.

Mr. Newton said the key to this is Mr. Looper, as the property owner, agreeing to have it

first, developed on something that has been designed to many details that he has not been

involved in. He said Mr. Looper likes the idea as to what the plan proposes but wants to

stay on his property. He said the only place that really works and supports the location

for him to stay on his property is around that pond, it does match the Land Use Plan both

the adopted plan that is in place as well as the newly adopted plan. He said it allows for

the development to occur of the employment, the live work units, and the residential to

the densities all around it and then you also have the property owner in a position that he

wants to begin to see it happen. He said that is Mr. Looper' s point.

He said at the being of the meeting you had a reminder to everybody of your duties. He

suggests strongly that your duty is to approve this rezoning because it does put in place





Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006

14

worked on by 5 jurisdictions and actually begin to implement that further. He said that is

where Mr. Looper is now; this affords him a way to actually be involved, to stay on the

property. He said there have been discussions about Mr. Looper working closer to

actually implement what is showing the design portion of this because this document also

shows and he did not go into other chapters that actually talks about design issues that are

not be met in the front portion of the Cabarrus County side right now.

He said Mr. Looper would like to stay there and certainly Mr. Looper in retrospect,
wishes he had been a lot more involved in it. He said the good thing is where he is

proposing to put his houses for he and his son, are compatible to this document. He said

it works within every aspect of it from the open space chapter, to the frame work setting
of the different overlay zonings that they are proposing, to the half mile walk areas, to

perpetual green spaces. He said Mr. Looper's option is if he does not want anything to

happen certainly he can put restricted covenants and keep it so that none of this ever

happens. He said Mr. Looper is not in a vindictive mode, saying okay, I was not

involved so nobody is going to develop this, instead Mr. Looper said okay he did not

know it happened, shame on me, and what can we do; here' s what we can do. He said

that is what Mr. Looper is trying to do, live on his land, proceed and find a way that it can

and still be developed within the frame work that Davidson, Kannapolis, Mecklenburg,
Cabarrus and even Concord wants to see happen.

The Chair asked if there were any more questions or discussion.

Mr. Shoemaker asked Susie Zakraisek, what the status is on the plan.

Ms. Zakraisek, Planning and Zoning Manager, addressed the Board saying as you can see

by the map, the property that we are talking about is attached on the plan, and the part in

the front is what is currently developing in Kannapolis' s city limits as Renaissance

Square. She said that area is taking shape as a neighborhood center. She said as far as

where the pond is and in that particular area it is designated by the 73 Plan as green

space; green space would be parks, neighborhood parks or greens. She said the vision

that the plan has is that the green would develop and then you would have your higher
density residential developing around that with your commercial closer to your main

corridors. She said that is the general overview of what that plan is asking for in that

particular area.

The Chair when he looks at this and the extent of the (01) Office Institutional zoning, you
have to ask yourself where the higher density stuff is going to go.

Ms. Zakraisek believes that when a lot of these ( 01) Office Institutional properties came

up, they were properties where the county expected growth and wanted to some extent

have input on that. She said ( 01) Office Institutional does not permit residential.

The Chair asked if she were saying the County kind of stamped (01) Office Institutional

on the stuff that they wanted to require people to ask for rezoning.









Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006

18

Mr. Newton said he would like to address that from another aspect. He said he served 2

terms on the Cabarrus County Board of Equalization and Review, which is the equivalent
of this Board for looking at tax issues. He served as Vice-Chairman of that and most of

that time conducted a lot of appeals on that issue. He said what Mr. Looper is proposing
will have some impact at the point when it is rezoned; however they do not look at the

zoning as the only and main criteria. When they do the appraisals are mass appraisals, it
is not individual or specific, and it is possible that on appeal come the end of January next

year we will say we think it is too high. He does not think he will come back next year
and think it is too low, but he can individually be look at next year based off of current

zoning or future zoning. He said the zoning is one of many criteria that is looked at and

even the Board of E and R considers a lot of other items.

Mr. Lancaster said when this was all rezoned (CR) Countryside Residential was very
little or did not exist at all, so he does not think this will be backing up to go from (01)

Office Institutional to (CR) Countryside Residential because before the rezoning of 2005

that was all (MDR) Medium Density Residential in that area, which is a higher density.
He does not think we would be backing up or going backwards. He said we knew at the

time when we rezoned that we would definitely have people coming forward wanting to

get rezoning due to the fact that that whole area was changed at one time. He said it did

happen that a lot of people did not know there property was changed.

The Chair addressed Mr. Bobby L. Deaton, Sr. who had a question unrelated to the

Looper Case and was told to contact staff with his questions.

Mr. Fesperman said Mr. Looper does not have to sell his current residence, and is still

living in a house and has not been turned out on the street. He said Mr. Looper does not

have to move or commit to Northeast from that stand point. He said Mr. Looper is in a

very amiable situation and he is happy for him. He was talking with Joe Smith from the

stand point that there is a very good fortune out there with all that has taken place. He

said no matter what our decision is it is not going to impact Mr. Looper in a negative
way, except that he knows Mr. Looper wants to build his house on the other piece of

land. Mr. Fesperman wishes that Mr. Looper had gotten involved early on in all of this

process. He said your land is a very valuable asset, so you have to stay attune to what is

going on around you at all times.

Mr. Berg said he does not have to move but as long as he stays there, regardless of what

the piece of property is zoned it is effectively residential, which does impede
development in that area where he is now.

The Chair said it impedes the implementation of the plan.

e

Mr. Looper said he is under contract with Northeast Regional and in just over 2 years
from now he will have to move, he has no choice. He has to go somewhere that is why
he is here today to get it lined up hopefully before July after next because they are going
to tell him he has 1 year and he has to go somewhere. He said what he is hearing from

Paul Davis and Steve Brumm who are doing Renaissance Square is that they are not



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006

19

going to say they do not want it, they are going to want it and are going to want to expand
and he has to go somewhere, which is why he is here tonight. He wants to go on the

property that he has own for 30 years.

Mr. Fesperman said they are not evicting him, that it is Mr. Looper' s decision, he worked

in a business relation with Northeast or who ever is buying the property and the deal is

done.

Mr. Newton said at the time Mr. Looper did that he had the ability to move over to

another residentially zoned piece ofproperty. He said it was rezoned after he signed that

option. He said Mr. Looper no longer has a position where he can back out, when he

signed it, it was right because he had a place to go, and he no longer has that zoning
designation.

Mr. Looper said he had 2 representatives at that meeting and neither one of them heard

anything said that his property was going to be rezoned to (01) Office Institutional. He

said they came back and discussed and he agreed with what was going on, but nobody
ever told Paul Davis or Steve Brumm that they were going to rezone his property to (01)

Office Institutional. He knew what was coming and agreed too it, he let Renaissance

Square happen, but nothing was ever said at any of those meetings about rezoning his

property. He felt like he could move forward and move to the other section of the

property.

There being no further discussion the Chair called for a motion.

Mr. Shoemaker MOTIONED, SECONDED by Mr. Lancaster to APPROVE Zoning
Atlas Amendment - Petition C-2006-07 (R) as requested. The vote was 6 to 3 to

APPROVE Zoning Atlas Amendment - Petition C- 2006-07 (R) with Mr. Shoemaker,
Mr. Griffin, Mr. Berg, Ms. Cook, Mr. Lancaster, and Mr. Devine voting in favor of

approval and Mr. Prince, Mr. Fesperman, and Mr. Haas voting in favor of denial. There

not being super majority vote, the Zoning Petition will go before the County
Commissioners.

Mr. Koch said the Board will need to do a consistency statement.

The Chair said the argument has been made that it is consistent with the area plans and

inconsistent with the current zoning and it is reasonable and in the public interest.

Old Business - Planning Board Function:

Preliminary Subdivision Plat Approval- Petition C2006-03( S) Cascades at

Skybrook

e
The Chair asked Mr. Koch to give the Board a synopsis of the document they received in
which Mr. Koch seems to find that the interest were vested.



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006
20

Mr. Koch said you may recall the last time this particular Preliminary Plat Approval was

on the Agenda, a question came up concerning whether there were some vested rights
accorded the developer with reference to this particular part of the Skybrook Subdivision,

and at that point since Mr. Loeberg who was here last time, his company was unaware of

where they stood on that particular point. Mr. Koch said if he recalls correctly, he thinks

they have closed on the purchase of this property, they bought it from another individual

who was involved with it at the time that the Skybrook development was first set up. He

said it was a Mr. Coley that they contracted with and closed with. Mr. Koch thinks it was

indicated to them that there was some vested rights but did not have any documentation

to support it. He said the Board voted so that we could look into the matter. He said

come to find out subsequent to that meeting date that there had been a Consent

Agreement that had been entered into between the County and the developers of

Skybrook, sort of a master Consent Agreement, that covered the entire proposed
development. He said that is the document that he distributed to the Board tonight. He

said that document actually calls for specific vesting of the parcels that are contained in

the Skybrook Development including this parcel; it provides that as long as they have plat
approval for different portions of it within a 2 year period that the vesting rights would

continue. He said what he did not distribute to them was a schedule of all the plats that

have been approved, there have actually been some 15 or 20 of them and some are

revisions and some of them are actual plat approval for different parts of it. He said

nevertheless it' s sufficient to look at the list ofthat 2 years time period in which they
have to continue to have plats approved as maintained since July 2000 when this Consent

Agreement was entered into. He said what this agreement also provides in Section 2.2. 1

on page 3, is that the development of these parcels will be done in accordance with the

ordinances that were in effect as of January 1999.

Mr. Koch said what the applicant was proposing in his plat last time is not something that

is in conformance with that particular set of ordinances that were in existence at that time,

so he thinks that their position this evening is that they would like some additional time to

perhaps rework their plan. He thinks that what they had was something more of a hybrid
of what had been in existence and what is presently in existence in the form of the

ordinance; and also an interpretation had been made by Rodger Lentz; he said you may
recall a letter that Rodger had written about a certain part of that. He thinks the applicant
is going to ask that the Board table the subdivision plat approval for them to have an

opportunity for them to rework it.

The Chair said in compliance with the 1999 ordinance which is probably less stringent
then the ones we today that they were trying to meet.

Mr. Koch said that could very well be, he cannot comment on that but perhaps Susie can,

but certainly that is something that had been agreed upon between the developer of this

development and the County and is a biding contractual obligation. He thinks what

would be helpful this evening is to go ahead since it is the province of this Board to

approve vested rights even though there is not a document, he thinks it would be helpful
to go ahead and entertain a motion to that affect and recognize it since it was an issue that
was left open from last time.



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006
21

The Chair asked ifMr. Koch was saying they have not locked up contractually by law,

they have vested rights,

Mr. Koch said that is his interpretation of this document. He said there is also a matter of

another parcel he thinks they may have under contract or have actually closed on, which
is across the main entry street from this particular parcel.

The Chair asked if it was covered by this general document as well.

Mr. Koch said it is part of it as well.

Mr. Loeberg addressed the Board showing the subject properties on a map. He said they
have purchased the subject property and they have a contract agreement to purchase the

other property. He asks the Board to include both parcels in this affirmation.

The Chair said you would like us to recognize the vested rights that they have in both.

Mr. Loeberg said yes.

Ms. Zakraisek said our legal counsel has determined that they have vested rights. She
believes they would like to look at the option; she is not sure if they will be able to pick
up the additional units based on the design. She said the design schemes are very
different between the ordinance that the original consent agreement was done under and

the requirements now. She said if they come back she is not sure if they will use the same

product or if they will want to look at it to see if they can get additional units. She said
the last plat that Colleen worked with them on needed some of those changes that they
had to make through that interpretation, if they are not now having to make those changes
then she believes it will probably have an impact on their project.

The Chair asked if the vesting allowed them to meet the standards of the 1999 ordinance.

Ms. Zakraisek said that is correct, when a project is vested then they are subject to that

particular ordinance at that time. She said since they have been recording preliminary
plats it would continue the vesting under that particular ordinance.

The Chair said they have met the requirements of the contract, the consent agreement.

Ms. Zakraisek said that is correct, and as long as they meet the terms of the ordinance at

that time, then the Board will be obligated to approve.

Ms. Cook asked, regardless ofhow much additional property they purchase?

Ms. Zakraisek said the consent agreement covers the initial area that was Skybrook, if
they went out and purchased some additional property across the street or something like
that, then we would be talking about a whole new ball game and it would not apply at



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

September 21, 2006

22

that point and they would have to do a new consent agreement and would then be vested

at time.

The Chair said the way he understands it is this only covers the property that was

included in the Master Plan for Skybrook.

Ms. Zakraisek said right, this consent agreement was not the typical consent agreement
that you all potentially here about or see now, where it is based on a preliminary plat, this

consent agreement was based on their overall project. She said it was in conjunction with

their rezoning and the anticipation of what the densities were going to be for those

particular areas.

Mr. Berg said at the last meeting we tabled this to this meeting do we need to table this

again?

Mr. Koch thinks you need to entertain a motion to recognize that there are vested rights
but then also table the consideration of the preliminary subdivision plat until the next

meeting. He said in a conversation he had with Mr. Loeberg, he mentioned some

changes.

Mr. Berg MOTIONED, SECONDED by Mr. Shoemaker to APPROVE the vested

rights pursuant to the Consent Agreement and table the application until the next meeting.

The Chair asked if there were any discussion of the motion.

There begin no further discussion the vote was Unanimous to APPROVE the vested

rights pursuant to the Consent Agreement and table the application until the next meeting.

Directors Report

Ms. Zakraisek sent out an email about some training, ifanyone is interested in attending
please let her know, the County will pay for you to attend.

The Chair asked for motion to adjourn.

Mr. Haas MOTIONED, SECONDED by Mr. Divine to adjourn the meeting. The vote

was Unanimous. The meeting adjourned at 8: 47 p.m.






